
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
 
MUNICIPAL COMPLEX, EILEEN DONDERO FOLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, PORTSMOUTH, NH  
DATE: MONDAY, MAY 19, 2025                 TIME: 7:00PM 
   
Members of the public also have the option to join the meeting over Zoom, a unique meeting 
ID and password will be provided once you register. To register, click on the link below or 
copy and paste this into your web browser 
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_-zWVmsZwQiK0nr9wwCNjvQ 
 
6:30PM – AN ANTICIPATED NON-PUBLIC SESSION IS BEING HELD IN CONFERENCE ROOM A 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH RSA 91-A:3 II (l) 

 

AGENDA 
 

I. WORK SESSION  
II. PUBLIC DIALOGUE SESSION [when applicable – every other regularly scheduled 

meeting]  
III. CALL TO ORDER [7:00 p.m. or thereafter] 
IV. ROLL CALL    
V. INVOCATION 
VI. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 
VII. ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES (There will be no minutes on this evening for acceptance) 
 
VIII. RECOGNITIONS AND VOLUNTEER COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT SESSION (This session shall not exceed 45 minutes) – (participation 

may be in person or via Zoom) 
 
X. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND VOTE ON ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 
 

First Reading of Ordinance:  
 
A. First Reading of Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 10, ZONING ORDINANCE, CITY OF 

PORTSMOUTH ZONING MAP, to be amended to rezone parcels described on the City’s 
Tax Map 125, Lot 16; Tax Map 138, Lot 16; Tax Map 138, Lot 62; and a portion of Tax 
Map 138, Lot 63 from Character District 5 (CD5) to Character District 4-W (CD4-W); to 
rezone a portion of Tax Map 138, Lot 63 from Character District 5 (CD5) to Character 
District L1 (CD4-L1); to change the boundary of the North End Incentive Overlay District 
(NEIOD) and to amend the boundary of the Downtown Overlay District (DOD) to align 
with the amended North End Incentive Overly District (NEIOD); and to amend the building 
heights in the North End Incentive Overlay District (NEIOD) from 2-4 stories (50 feet) to 
2-3 stories (40 feet) for parcels described on the City’s Tax Map 125 Lot 16, Tax Map 138 
Lot 62 and Tax Map 125 Lot 14  

 
The Zoning Maps to be amended and reissued to incorporate these amendments 
pursuant to City’s Zoning Ordinance at Chapter 10, Article 4, Zoning and District Use 
Regulations, Section 10.421, District Location and Boundaries, Section 10.421.10 and 
Chapter 10, Article 5A, Character Based Zoning, Section 10.5A21.10, Content of 
Regulation Plan, Map 10.5A21A (Character Districts and Civic Districts) and Map 
10.5A21B (Building Height Standards) 

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_-zWVmsZwQiK0nr9wwCNjvQ


City Council Meeting Agenda 
Monday, May 19, 2025 

Page 2 
 

Zoning Maps that depict the existing conditions and these amendments will be available 
at second reading (Sample motion – move to pass first reading and hold a public 
hearing and second reading at the June 9, 2025 City Council meeting.) 
 

Public Hearing on FY26 Budget: 
 

B. PUBLIC HEARING on the Proposed FY26 – July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026 Budget 
 
• PRESENTATION 
• CITY COUNCIL QUESTIONS 
• PUBLIC HEARING SPEAKERS (Continuation of the Budget Public Hearing will 

be held on June 9, 2025) 
• ADDITIONAL COUNCIL QUESTIONS AND DELIBERATIONS 
 
(Sample motion – move to continue the Budget Public Hearing open until Monday, 
June 9, 2025) 
 

XI. CITY MANAGER’S ITEMS WHICH REQUIRE ACTION 
 

A. CITY MANAGER CONARD 
 

City Manager’s Items Which Require Action: 
 
1. Repurposing of Bond Proceeds: SCHOOL SECURITY 

 
2. Request for Approval of a Tentative Agreement between the City of Portsmouth and the 

Association of Portsmouth Teachers 
 
3. Request for Approval of a Tentative Agreement between the City of Portsmouth and the 

Portsmouth Public Library Employees Local 1386 AFSCME Council 93 
 
XII. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Request from Coureur Portsmouth to hold the Coureur Annual Go Skate Day Jam on 
Saturday, June 21, 2025 from 12:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. at the Portsmouth Skatepark (Rain 
Date will be on Sunday, June 22, 2025) (Anticipated action – move to refer to the City 
Manager with Authority to Act) 

XIII. PRESENTATIONS AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Letter from Robin Rousseau requesting that the City Council consider creating zoning 
regulations regarding 5G cellular towers (Sample motion – move to refer to the 
Planning Board and Planning Department for report back) 

 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
Monday, May 19, 2025 

Page 3 

B. Letter from Craig Welch, Executive Director, Portsmouth Housing Authority & PHA
Housing Development Ltd., requesting the waiver of permit fees for their project at the
Christ Church Workforce Housing and HAVEN at 1035 Lafayette Road

C. Email Correspondence (Sample motion – move to accept and place on file)

XIV. MAYOR McEACHERN

1. *Appointments to be Considered:
• Reappointment of Celeste Brooks to the Cemetery Committee

XV. CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS

A. MAYOR MCEACHERN AND ASSISTANT MAYOR KELLEY

1. *Request for first reading for Free 30 Minute Resident Parking in Downtown Metered
Parking Areas (Sample motion - move to amend Chapter 7, Article III, Traffic
Ordinance, Section 7.326, Limited Parking- Fifteen Minutes, to amend the
ordinance to convert twenty-five 15 minute parking spaces to Free 30 Minute
Resident Parking Spaces in Downtown Metered Parking Areas, and to schedule
first reading at the June 9, 2025 City Council meeting)

B. COUNCILOR BAGLEY

1. *Action Item Needing Approval by City Council:
• Hanover Street Valet License – The 100 Club (Sample motion – move to approve 

annual renewal of valet license for The 100 Club)
• Brewster Street Loading Zone Hours (Sample motion – move to approve change 

in loading zone hours from 7:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, to 
6:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m., Monday through Saturday)

2. Parking & Traffic Safety Committee Action Sheet and Minutes of the May 1, 2025 
meeting (Sample motion – move to approve and accept the action sheet and 
minutes of the May 1, 2025 Parking & Traffic Safety Committee meeting)

XVI. APPROVAL OF GRANTS/DONATIONS

A. Acceptance of Donations to the Police Department for the Police Explorers
• Geno’s Chowder and Sandwich Shop - $250.00
• Gail A. Frongillo - $30.00
(Sample motion – move to approve and accept the donations for the Police 
Department Police Explorers as presented) 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
Monday, May 19, 2025 

Page 4 

XVII. CITY MANAGER’S INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

1. *Master Plan Update
2. *Bond Rating Update
3. *2025 National Program of Excellence Award for Senior Services

XVIII. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS INCLUDING BUSINESS REMAINING UNFINISHED AT
PREVIOUS MEETING

XIX. ADJOURNMENT [at 10:30 p.m. or earlier]

*Indicates verbal report with no attachments

KELLI L. BARNABY, MMC/CNHMC 
CITY CLERK



ORDINANCE # 
THE CITY OF PORTSMOUTH ORDAINS 

 
That Chapter 10, ZONING ORDINANCE, CITY OF PORTSMOUTH ZONING MAP be amended to 
rezone parcels described on the City’s Tax Map 125, Lot 16; Tax Map 138, Lot 16; Tax Map 138, Lot 62; 
and a portion of Tax Map 138, Lot 63 from Character District 5 (CD5) to Character District 4-W (CD4-
W); to rezone a portion of Tax Map 138, Lot 63 from Character District 5 (CD5) to Character District L1 
(CD4-L1); to change the boundary of the North End Incentive Overlay District and to amend the 
boundary of the Downtown Overlay District (DOD) to align with the amended North End Incentive 
Overly District (NEIOD); and to amend the building heights in the North End Incentive Overlay District 
from 2-4 stories (50 feet) to 2-3 stories (40 feet) for parcels described on the City’s Tax Map 125 Lot 16, 
Tax Map 138 Lot 62 and Tax Map 125 Lot 14. Deletions from existing language stricken; additions to 
existing language bolded; remaining language unchanged from existing with appropriate bold and colors. 

The Zoning Maps to be amended are referenced in the City’s Zoning Ordinance at Chapter 10, Article 4, 
Zoning and District Use Regulations, Section 10.421, District Location and Boundaries, Section 
10.421.10 and Chapter 10, Article 5A, Character Based zoning, Section 10.5A21.10, Content of 
Regulation Plan, Map 10.5A21A (Character Districts and Civic Districts) and Map 10.5A21B (Building 
Height Standards. 

 

That the Zoning Maps be amended so that the following described parcels are rezoned from Character 
District 5 (CD5) to Character District 4-W (CD4-W): 

City Tax Map 125, Lot 16 

City Tax Map 138, Lot 61 

City Tax Map 138, Lot 62 

City Tax Map 138, Lot 63 (portion of) 

 

That the Zoning Maps be amended so that the following described parcel is rezoned from Character 
District 5 (CD5) to Character District L1 (CD4-L1): 

City Tax Map 138, Lot 63 (portion of) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Map 10.5A21A Character Districts and Civic Districts 
Proposed 

 
 
Map 10.5A21A Character Districts and Civic Districts 
Existing 

 
 



That the Zoning Maps be amended to change the boundary of the North End Incentive Overly District 
(NEIOD) as depicted in the map below: 

Map 10.5A21B Building Height Standards 
Proposed  

 

Map 10.5A21B Building Height Standards 
Existing  

   



That the Zoning Maps be amended to move the boundary of the Downtown Overlay District (DOD) to 
align with the boundary of the North End Incentive Overlay District (NEIOD) as described above and as 
depicted in the map below. 

Map 10.5A21A Character Districts and Civic Districts 
Proposed 

 
Map 10.5A21A Character Districts and Civic Districts 
Existing 

 



That the Zoning Maps be amended to change the building heights from 2-4 stories (50 feet) to 
2-3 stories (40) feet for the following described parcels and as depicted in the map below. 
 

City Tax Map 125 Lot 14 
City Tax Map 125, Lot 16 
City Tax Map 138, Lot 62 

Map 10.5A21B Building Height Standards 
Proposed  

 

Map 10.5A21B Building Height Standards 
Existing    

 



The City Clerk shall properly alphabetize and/or re-number the ordinances as necessary in 
accordance with this amendment. 

 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby 

deleted. This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage. 

 
APPROVED: 

 
 

 
Deaglan McEachern, Mayor 

 
 
ADOPTED BY COUNCIL: 

 
 

 
Kelli L. Barnaby, City Clerk 

 

























Karen S. Conard 
City Manager 

CITY OF PORTSMOUTH 
Municipal Complex 
1 Junkins Avenue 

Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801 
kconard@portsmouthnh.gov 

(603) 610-7201

Date:  May 15, 2025 

To:  Honorable Mayor McEachern and City Council Members 

From:  Karen S. Conard, City Manager     

Re:  City Manager’s Comments on City Council Agenda of May 19, 2025 

X . P u b l i c  H e a r i n g s  a n d  V o t e  o n  O r d i n a n c e s  a n d / o r  R e s o l u t i o n s :

A. First Reading of Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 10, Zoning Ordinance - Zoning Map, Article
4, Zoning and District Use Regulations, Section 10.421, District Location and Boundaries, Section
10.421.10 and Article 5A, Section 10.5A21.10, Content of Regulating Plan – Map 10.5A21B –
Building Height Standards:

The City Council voted on May 5, 2025 to hold first reading on proposed changes to the Zoning Map,
Building Height Map, and align the North End Incentive Overlay District and Downtown Overlay
District boundaries. The Planning Board provided a recommendation to the Council from their April
17th meeting, which recommended these changes be taken under consideration through the Master
Plan process. For additional background on the Planning Board’s review and staff input, please see
the attached memo that was provided to the Council at the May 5th meeting.

I recommend that the City Council move to pass first reading and schedule a public hearing and
second reading at the June 9, 2025 City Council meeting.

B. Public Hearing on the Proposed FY26 (July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026) Budget:

This evening, the City Council will hold its first Public Hearing on the FY26 Proposed Municipal
Budget. The Proposed Budget for FY26 was presented in two nights of City Council work sessions,
May 12th and 14th, with Public Comment welcomed each night. The Public Hearing on the Budget
will be opened tonight and the public is invited to share their feedback. The Budget discussion will
continue in a third Work Session of the Council on Wednesday, May 28th at 6:00 p.m., with Public
Comment to follow. The Public Hearing on the Budget will remain open through the City Council
meeting of Monday, June 9th, at which time the Council may vote to adopt the final budget.

I recommend that the City Council continue the Budget Public Hearing until Monday, June 9, 2025.

mailto:kconard@portsmouthnh.gov


CM Comment 5_19-25 

Page | 2  
 
 

 

X I .  C i t y  M a n a g e r ’ s  I t e m s  W h i c h  R e q u i r e  A c t i o n :  

1. Repurposing of Bond Proceeds: 

I request that the City Council schedule a public hearing and vote on the attached proposed 
Bonding Resolution for the June 9, 2025 City Council meeting. 

 
The Bonding Resolution seeks approval to repurpose proceeds no longer needed to pay costs of 
the project for which they were initially borrowed to pay for costs of another project. This 
Resolution would authorize the transfer of the unexpended portion of bond proceeds for the Fit 
Out Renovation of the Robert J. Lister Academy (RJLA) space at the Community Campus to a 
new project providing districtwide School Facilities Security Upgrades. The RJLA project was 
bonded through two (2) authorizations of $1,500,000 and $1,800,000, for a total of $3,300,000. 
That project is now complete, with $551,638 remaining that would be repurposed with the 
authority to pay for the costs of the school security upgrades project. 

 
Representatives of the School Department will be prepared to explain the details of the proposed 
School Facilities Security Upgrades project at that City Council meeting. 
 
I recommend that the City Council move to schedule a public hearing and vote on June 9, 2025 to 
authorize the repurposing of the bond proceeds as described herein. 

 
2. Request for Approval of a Tentative Agreement between the City of Portsmouth and the 

Association of Portsmouth Teachers: 
 
Attached for your information is the Tentative Agreement with the Association of Portsmouth 
Teachers. 
 
I recommend that the City Council approve the Tentative Agreement with the Association of 
Portsmouth Teachers as presented. 
 

3. Request for Approval of a Tentative Agreement between the City of Portsmouth and the 
Portsmouth Public Library Employees Local 1386 of the AFSCME Council 93: 

 
Attached for your information is the Tentative Agreement with the Portsmouth Public Library 
Employees Local 1386 of the AFSCME Council 93. 
 
I recommend that the City Council approve the Tentative Agreement with the Portsmouth Public 
Library Employees Local 1386 of the AFSCME Council 93 as presented. 
 



CM Comment 5_19-25 

Page | 3  
 
 

X I I .  C o n s e n t  A g e n d a :  

A. Request from Coureur Portsmouth to hold the Coureur Annual Go Skate Day Jam on Saturday, June 
21, 2025 from 12:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. at the Portsmouth Skatepark (Rain Date will be Sunday, June 
22, 2025). 

X V I .  A p p r o v a l  o f  G r a n t s / D o n a t i o n s :  

A. Acceptance of Donation for the Police Department from Geno’s Chowder and Sandwich Shop 
- $250.00: 

Attached please find a donation form from the Police Department for a donation in the amount of 
$250.00 from Geno’s Chowder and Sandwich Shop for the Portsmouth Police Explorers Post #2609.  
This donation was approved and accepted at the April 15, 2025 Police Commission meeting. Police 
Commissioner Francesca Fernald abstained from voting due to a conflict of interest, and the vote 
passed 2-0-1. 

I recommend that the City Council move to approve and accept the donation as presented. 

 
B. Acceptance of Donation for the Police Department from Mrs. Gail Frongillo - $30.00: 

Attached please find a donation form from the Police Department for a donation in the amount of      
$30.00 from Mrs. Gail Frongillo for the Portsmouth Police Explorers Post #2609. This donation 
was approved and accepted at the April 15, 2025 Police Commission meeting. 

I recommend that the City Council move to approve and accept the donation as presented. 

X V I I .  C i t y  M a n a g e r ’ s  I n f o r m a t i o n a l  I t e m s :  

1. Master Plan Update: 

The City recently executed a contract with planning and design firm Utile; the firm is quickly 
coming up to speed, digesting background material from such sources as our Climate Action Plan, 
Places to Live Study Circle Dialogue Report, and Parking Utilization Study, along with the 
Bicycle Pedestrian Plan and Market Square Master Plan when complete.  
 
Utile has hired an outreach coordinator (local accessibility expert Anne Weidman) to support the 
overall outreach process, expanding the reach of the Plan throughout the community. In this role, 
Anne will expand the breadth of public outreach beyond the traditional community meetings, 
taking advantage of getting the word out in a variety of settings and venues that a traditional 
outreach effort would not typically provide.   
  
A Master Plan Steering Committee is currently being assembled to support the development of the 
Master Plan. The Steering Committee, comprised of members of the City Council, Planning 
Board, Housing Blue Ribbon Committee, Economic Development Commission, Arts & Cultural 
Commission, Recreation Board, and community members, will work closely with the City and 



CM Comment 5_19-25 

Page | 4  
 
 

Utile to provide regular feedback and guidance on plan content throughout the planning process. 
The Committee’s primary role is to provide strategic direction, offer feedback, and serve as a 
sounding board for the Utile/City team to ensure they align with community goals. The plan is for 
the Steering Committee to organize and meet starting in June. 
  
While this is primarily a learning and data analysis phase, Utile is beginning to identify the needs 
and opportunities and will begin to develop visioning comment cards and surveys to have a soft 
start to the outreach, which will also include community event pop-ups and other touchpoints 
before a big visioning open house. While July and August would be the ideal time to host a large 
community meeting and public visioning open house, summer vacation is not. Therefore, that 
event is planned for September, when people are back from summer vacation and the more formal 
engagement can begin.  
 
Coming soon: a new page on the City website, dedicated to the Master Plan effort. 
 

2. Bond Rating Update: 

I will provide a verbal update on the status of our most recent bond rating call with S&P Global. 

3. 2025 National Program of Excellence Award for Senior Services: 
 
The National Council on Aging (NCOA) has selected the City of Portsmouth Senior Activity 
Center’s “Rock the Crock” program in collaboration with Gather and the Portsmouth Housing 
Authority (PHA) to receive one of just seven NCOA National Institute of Senior Centers (NISC) 
Program of Excellence Awards. The Programs of Excellence awards are judged by a panel of 
peers and NISC Affiliate members. The competition is divided into seven categories: 
Marketing/Public Relations, Social and Support Services, Health and Wellness, Intergenerational, 
Nutrition, Technology, Virtual and Hybrid Programming, and Modernizing Senior Centers. 
 
“Rock the Crock” offers attending seniors from the Portsmouth Senior Activity Center, Gather, 
and Portsmouth Housing Authority an engaging, hands-on cooking lesson focusing on nutritious 
and appetizing meals that can be made in a mini crockpot. Thanks to funding from a local 
foundation grant and assistance from Gather, attendees enjoy the resulting meal together and leave 
with their own mini crockpot, recipe book, apron and a $25 local grocery gift card to recreate the 
meal. The program also teaches PHA residents how to utilize the local transportation program. 

The Portsmouth Senior Activity Center is operated by the City of Portsmouth Recreation 
Department to create opportunities for healthy aging through social engagement, physical well-
being, civic involvement, creativity, and lifelong learning. It is open to the public, regardless of 
residency and membership is free. 

 



CITY OF PORTSMOUTH 
TWO THOUSAND TWENTY-FIVE 

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

RESOLUTION #__ – 2025 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF BOND PROCEEDS 
THAT ARE NO LONGER NEEDED TO PAY COSTS OF THE PROJECT FOR 
WHICH IT WAS INITIALLY BORROWED, TO PAY COSTS OF ANOTHER 
CAPITAL PROJECT IN ACCORDANCE WITH RSA 33:3-a (II)  

RESOLVED: That in accordance with RSA 33:3-a (II), the unexpended balances of 
funds borrowed to pay costs of the project set forth below, which 
amounts are no longer needed to complete the project for which they 
were initially borrowed, are hereby appropriated by this Council to 
pay costs of School Facilities Security Upgrades. 

Original Project Description
Original Borrowing 

Amount Approval Date
Unexpended 

Balance Allocate to Project

Renovation of RJLA space 3,300,000.00           7/10/2023 551,638.00    School Facilities
at Community Campus Security Upgrades

Total 551,638.00    

APPROVED: 

__________________________ 
DEAGLAN MCEACHERN, MAYOR 

ADOPTED BY CITY COUNCIL 

___________________________ 
KELLI  BARNABY,  CMC/CNHMC 
CITY  CLERK  













































































May 5, 2025 
 
 
I would like to request that the City Council consider putting 5G tower zoning up for 
discussion on their agenda. I just learned that there is a T-Mobile 5G tower across the street 
from me at 55 Congress Street.  I called the FCC about it and they told me that it was up to 
local governments to come up with their own zoning regulations for 5G tower locations.  
  
I spoke with Peter Britz in Planning who told me we do not currently have any zoning 
regulations around 5G towers. He agreed with me that for safety purposes, its time that our 
city address this issue. He is ready to discuss the matter with the City Council and make 
recommendations to them.   

I do believe that this is an important safety matter that our community would care about 
fixing.  

  

Robin Rousseau, CPA 
90 Fleet Street 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
603-670-8150 
robinarousseau@aol.com 

 

mailto:robinarousseau@aol.com


 

               

 
 

May 7, 2025 

Karen Conard 
City Manager, City of Portsmouth 
1 Junkins Avenue 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Dear Karen, 

After a six-month delay, we are delighted to be moving forward again with the Christ Church Workforce 
Housing and HAVEN project at 1035 Lafayette Road. This project represents a meaningful step toward 
addressing the urgent need for affordable housing options in Portsmouth while also adding to HAVEN's 
efficacy and sustainability, and the outstanding work they do for people throughout the region.   

As you know, the city land-use boards have approved this project, and key sources of financing are in place. 
Our goal is to close on financing and break ground as early as this fall.     

The project still bears some risk because of higher construction costs, increased unforeseen costs for utility 
upgrades and new regulatory requirements, putting more pressure on funding sources and uses.  It is 
critically important that we control costs to achieve our affordability goals. One way the City can help 
assure our success is by waiving City fees associated with this development.   

We are grateful that the City has waived fees for Ruth Lewin Griffin Place in 2022 and for the Sherburne 
School project this year.  Waiving these fees is cost-neutral and consistent with City policy designed to 
encourage the development of more affordable housing in the city.     

While PHA routinely pays permit fees for our capital improvement efforts, this request is to waive fees 
only for this project at 1035 Lafayette Road. Thank you for your continued support and for helping us move 
this important project forward. 

Sincerely,  

 

 
Craig Welch 
Executive Director 
Portsmouth Housing Authority & PHA Housing Development Ltd.  

Cc: Kathy Beebe, Executive Director, HAVEN 

 

http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=fair+housing+symbol&id=E90AF7F5F99798FD1664CA92F329C22E2C66EF19&FORM=IQFRBA#view=detail&id=E90AF7F5F99798FD1664CA92F329C22E2C66EF19&selectedIndex=0


City Council Emails – April 21, 2025 – May 15, 2025 

 

Submitted on Mon, 05/12/2025 - 04:41 

Submitted by: Anonymous 

Submitted values are: 

First Name 
Ross  
 
Last Name 
Laorenza 
 
Email 
rlaorenza@gmail.com 
 
Address 
3 Danforth Rd, APT 24 
Nashua, New Hampshire. 03060 
 
Message 
City Council, Mr. Mayor, Mrs. Mayor; 
 
I ask for your help. As a former resident and worker in several industries in the city of Portsmouth 
and towns of Newington, NH it troubles me to see the average annual income to be a homeowner in 
our beloved city. $700,000 + for a firefighter, cop, restaurant worker, federal employee in the 30’s 
and 40’s. Are we expected to work four jobs to make ends meet and avoid hour long commutes. 
That doesn’t seem like a healthy, responsible way to live.  
 
I ask you this one question: What kind of city do you want to serve: Wealthy, Seacoast, Tourist 
attraction; Poor, impoverished, with crumbling in infrastructure, or a happy medium where the 
middle class can thrive, and the wealthy can do their part to support the struggling and working 
poor? 
 
You decide. My mind is made up.  
 
Best regards, 
Ross M. Laorenza 
Local Worker 
 
Please indicate if you would like your comment to be part of the public record for the 
upcoming City Council meeting. 
Yes 
 

mailto:rlaorenza@gmail.com






 
 

PARKING and TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  
ACTION SHEET 

8:30 A.M. – May 1, 2025 
City Hall Conference Room A 

 
PRESENT: Members:  Public Works Director Peter Rice, Fire Chief William McQuillen, 

Police Chief Mark Newport, Jillian Harris on behalf of Stephanie Casella 
Planning Department, Mark Syracusa, Erica Wygonik, Jane Mitchell-Pate, 
Mary Lou McElwain, Committee Chair Andrew Bagley via Zoom 

 
City Staff: City Engineer Eric Eby, Parking Director Ben Fletcher, 
Associate Engineer Tyler Reese 

 

ACTION ITEMS FOR CITY COUNCIL 
 

• Hanover Street, voted to approve annual renewal of valet license for The 100 Club. 
• Brewster Street, voted to approve change in loading zone hours from 7AM - 3PM Monday 

through Friday, to 6AM – 11AM, Monday through Saturday. 
 
• Roll Call 

 
• Financial Report: Voted to accept and place on file Financial Report dated March 31st, 

2025. 
 
• Public Comment Session: Tyler Garzo of 62 McKinley Road spoke regarding residential 

parking permits, as well as the New Hampshire Department of Transportation’s upcoming 
meeting regarding the Route 1 project. 

 
• Hanover Street, request for annual renewal of valet parking license, by The 100 Club. 

Voted to approve annual renewal of valet license for The 100 Club. 
 
• Chapel Street, request for two 15-minute parking spaces, by abutting business. Voted 

to place the item on file. 
 
• Brewster Street, request to change loading zone hours from 7AM - 3PM Monday 

through Friday, to 6AM – 11AM, Monday through Saturday, by abutting business. 
Voted to approve change in loading zone hours from 7AM - 3PM Monday through Friday, 
to 6AM – 11AM, Monday through Saturday. 

 
• Columbia Street, request to prohibit parking on one side of Columbia Street, by 

resident. Voted to refer to staff to evaluate and report with a future site visit. 
 
• 238 Deer Street, report back, request for 15-minute parking space by abutter. Voted 

to place item on file. 
 
• On-street overnight camping in vehicles. Item was discussed amongst the committee; 

no motion was presented. 



 
 

 
• Police monthly accident report: Informational; no action required. 

 
• Outdoor dining season: Informational; no action required. 
 
• Roadway construction projects update: Informational; no action required. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted by: Jefferson Lane 



 

 

PARKING and TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

 

CITY HALL, MUNICIPAL COMPLEX, 1 JUNKINS AVENUE 

Members of the public also had the opportunity to join the meeting via 
Zoom  

8:30 AM May 1st, 2025 
 

MINUTES 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

Vice Chairwoman Erica Wygonik called the meeting to order at 8:30 AM.  
 

II. ATTENDANCE 
Members Present: 
Public Works Director Peter Rice 
Police Chief Mark Newport  
Jillian Harris on behalf of Stephanie Casella, Planning Department  
Acting Chairwoman Erica Wygonik  
Jane Mitchell-Pate  
Mark Syracusa  
Mary Lou McElwain  
 
Fire Chief William McQuillen arrived at 8:36 AM  
Committee Chair Andrew Bagley via Zoom  
 
Members Absent:  
Dave Allen (alternate) 
 
City Staff Present: 
Eric Eby, City Engineer 
Ben Fletcher, Parking Director 
Tyler Reese, Associate Engineer 
 

III. FINANCIAL REPORT 

[00:10:49] Mark Syracusa moved to accept the financial report dated March 31st, 2025, seconded 
by Mary Lou McElwain. The motion passed unanimously.  
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (15 MINUTES) 
[00:12:59] Tyler Garzo of 62 McKinley Road spoke regarding residential parking permits and the 
New Hampshire Department of Transportation’s upcoming meeting regarding the Route 1 
project.  
 

V. PRESENTATIONS 

There were no presentations.  
 



 

 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
(No public comment during Committee discussion without Committee approval.) 
 

A. [00:14:44] Hanover Street, request for annual renewal of valet parking license, by The 100 
Club. Peter Rice moved to approve annual renewal of valet license for The 100 Club, 
seconded by Mary Lou McElwain. The motion passed unanimously.  

B. [00:15:28] Chapel Street, request for two 15-minute parking spaces, by abutting business. 
Peter Rice moved to refer to staff for evaluation and report back, seconded by Bill McQuillen. 
A discussion ensued, and Peter Rice made a friendly withdrawal of his motion. Bill McQuillen 
made a motion to place the item on file, seconded by Mark Syracusa. The motion passed 
unanimously.  

C. [00:28:55] Brewster Street, request to change loading zone hours from 7AM - 3PM Monday 
through Friday, to 6AM – 11AM, Monday through Saturday, by abutting business. Peter Rice 
moved to approve change in loading zone hours from 7AM - 3PM Monday through Friday, to 
6AM – 11AM, Monday through Saturday, seconded by Mary Lou McElwain. The motion 
passed unanimously.  

D. [00:29:54] Columbia Street, request to prohibit parking on one side of Columbia Street, by 
resident. Peter Rice moved to refer to staff to evaluate and report with a future site visit, 
seconded by Mark Syracusa. Report back to also include evaluation of need for RRFB at 
Islington Street crosswalk. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
VII. OLD BUSINESS 

A. [00:32:36] 238 Deer Street, report back, request for 15-minute parking space by abutter. 
Peter Rice moved to place on file, seconded by Mary Lou McElwain. The motion passed 
unanimously.  

B. [00:36:23] On-street overnight camping in vehicles. A discussion ensued regarding overnight 
camping and resident complaints regarding overnight camping on City Streets. Committee 
Chair Bagley stated that the City Council is working on parking changes Citywide that may 
alleviate the problems that currently exist.  

 

VIII. INFORMATIONAL 
A. [00:42:14] Police monthly accident report 
B. [00:47:10] Outdoor dining season   
C. [00:47:47] Roadway construction projects update 

 

IX. MISCELLANEOUS 

[00:53:35] Recognition of crossing guards and establishment of Crossing Guard Appreciation 
Day, now the 2nd Tuesday of May. 

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 

[00:57:17] Mark Syracusa moved to adjourn, seconded by Peter Rice. The motion passed 
unanimously. Vice Chairwoman Erica Wygonik adjourned the meeting at 9:22AM. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
Jefferson Lane 
Administrative Assistant II, Department of Public Works  



Market/Hanover Parking Lot

915 total , HHPF  HC spaces 18

18

41
39

37
35

33

29

27

25

23

17

85

87
89

91
93

95

52

56

60

62

64

78

80

65

63

61

57

55

53

49

101

105

107

111

113

100

117
115

123

M
A
R
K
E
T S

T

HANOVER ST

C
ER

ES ST

BO
W

 S
T

Map prepared by Portsmouth Department of Public Works ¹0 20 4010 Feet

1 inch = 36 feet

VI. A

ebeby
Callout
Loading zone used for valet parking.

ebeby
Text Box
The One Hundred Club





 

 

LICENSE AGREEMENT 
FOR THE ONE HUNDRED CLUB 

 
The City of Portsmouth (hereinafter "City"), a municipal corporation with a 

principal place of business of 1 Junkins Avenue, Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801, 

for good and valuable consideration as set forth herein, hereby grants this non-

exclusive, revocable license to The One Hundred Club with a principal place of 

business at 100 Market Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801 (hereinafter "Licensee") pursuant 

to the following terms and conditions: 

1. Area of License:  The City authorizes Licensee to use the loading zone 
on Hanover Street as shown on the attached Exhibit 1. 
 

2. Use:  Licensee may make use of the Licensed Area for the purpose of 
Licensee's parking valet service activities. Such activities are subject to 
the following conditions: 
 
• The hours of operation of the valet service are 5:00 p.m. to 12:00 a.m. 

Monday through Sunday. 
• No vehicles receiving valet services may be parked in municipal 

spaces (metered, garage or otherwise). 
• There shall be no stacking of vehicles in adjacent parking spaces. 
• This license is non-exclusive and the loading zone will remain available 

for commercial loading purposes and for such additional purposes as 
the City may authorize or license. 

• Licensee will represent clearly and consistently that it is a private 
company and that the municipality is not responsible for any damage 
or loss to vehicles or property.  

 
3. Signage:  This License Agreement also authorizes Licensee's use of the 

existing signage in place on Hanover Street as shown in Exhibit 1. 
 

4. Term:  This license shall commence upon the execution of this Agreement 
and terminate on June 30, 2026. This License may be renewed for an 
additional term upon the joint approval of the Parking and Traffic Safety 
Committee and the City Manager. 

 
5. Payment Terms:  Licensee will make payment of an annual fee to the 

City in the amount of $ 1,500 which represents the cost of the valet 
parking permit fee.  No other payment is required.  Payment is due upon 
the execution of this Agreement and shall be made to the City of 



 

 

Portsmouth and directed to the City Parking Clerk at 1 Junkins Avenue, 
Portsmouth, NH. Failure to make the required payment when due may 
result in the termination of this Agreement at the City’s option. 

 
6. Indemnification:  Licensee agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 

City of Portsmouth for any and all property damage, bodily injury or 
personal injury which arises as a result of its use of the Licensed Area. 
This obligation survives termination or revocation of this Agreement. 

 
7. Insurance:  At all times during the use and exercise of this license, 

Licensee agrees to maintain comprehensive general liability insurance 
covering its operation under this license in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 general aggregate. Such 
insurance shall name the City of Portsmouth as an additional insured. 
Licensee agrees to maintain Garage Keepers insurance in the amount of 
$100,000 per occurrence for the term of this Agreement. Certificates 
indicating the existence of these insurances shall be maintained on file at 
all times during the license period with the Parking and Transportation 
Division of the City of Portsmouth Public Works Department. 

 
8. Maintenance of Area:  Licensee will maintain the Licensed Area in neat 

and orderly fashion during Licensee's hours of use. The Licensee shall 
take such measures as may be necessary to maintain pedestrian and 
vehicular safety during use of the Licensed Areas for its valet service. 

 
9. Damage:  Licensee agrees to take reasonable steps to remedy promptly 

any damage to the Licensed Area caused by the Licensee's activities. The 
City may elect to accept reasonable reimbursement from the Licensee in 
lieu of remedy. 

 
10. Compliance With Other Laws:  This Agreement does not relieve 

Licensee from compliance with any other local, state or federal laws or 
regulations or conditions imposed by any local board.  Failure to abide by 
any local, state or federal laws or regulations may, at the City's discretion, 
result in revocation. 

 
11. Revocation:  The City may terminate this Agreement or any provision 

contained in this Agreement on 72 hours written notice provided to 
Licensee if the public interest requires such termination, in which case all 
fees paid by Licensee shall be returned on a pro-rata basis. This 
Agreement may be revoked or suspended immediately without notice by 
the City for cause, e.g. violation of the terms of this license, in which case, 
all fees paid by Licensee shall remain the property of the City. 

 
  



 

 

Dated this    day of     , 2025. 
 

 City of Portsmouth 
 

 By:       
     Karen Conard 
     City Manager 
 
     Pursuant to vote of the City Council    
     of_____________________. 

 
 
Dated this    day of     , 2025. 
 
 

The One Hundred Club   
   

By:       
Print Name:      
Its Duly Authorized:     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
H:\rps\agreement\valet agrs\100 Club\2025-2026\ Valet Agreement 

 



Gift and Donation Submission Form 

Donations received by the City of Portsmouth must be accepted by the City Council. Please 

complete this form and submit it to the City Manager for inclusion on an upcoming agenda. 

Date: 

Department/ 

Contact Person: 

  Donation Amount:  

Are Funds to be directed to a particular department, program or fund? – If yes, please 

provide detail below: 

 Is there a particular purpose intended with this donation: 

The Police Department has a standing operating policy relative to the 

receipt of donations. Donations are reviewed initially by the Chief and are 

then considered by the Police Commission. The Police Commission then 

votes to accept the donation. They are then presented to the City Manager 

to go before the City Council for final approval. 

These donations were approved by the Police Commission at their April 

15th meeting. 

 Other Information/Special Conditions: 

The Portsmouth Police Explorers hosted a fundraiser at Bowl-O-Rama. 

Donor #1 Information for Portsmouth Police Explorers 

First & Last Name: 

Business Name: 

Address*: 

Phone*: 

 Email*: 

5-5-25

Police Department, Chief Newport/Exec. Asst. Jackie 
Burnett 

Two (2) checks totaling $280 

Geno’s Chowder and Sandwich Shop: $250 for the Portsmouth Police Explorers. 

Mrs. Gail A. Frongillo check: $30 for the Portsmouth Police Explorers 

Francesca Fernald 

Geno’s Chowder and Sandwich Shop 

177 Mechanic Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801 

603-427-2070

mailto:Francesca177@comcast.net


Gift and Donation Submission Form 

Donor #2 Information for Portsmouth Police Explorers 

First & Last Name: 

Business Name: 

Address*: 

Phone*: 

 Email*: 

Please note that gifts/donations to individual employees with a value of $100 or more are not 

permitted. Information with an asterisk (*) indicates it will not be publicly distributed. 

Mrs. Gail A. Frongillo 

NA 

NA 

NA 


	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - 5-19-2025
	Agenda

	FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE
	Zoning Ordinance - Zoning Map - Character Districts, etc.

	PUBLIC HEARING ON FY26 BUDGET
	Legal Notice - Public Hearing

	CITY MANAGER COMMENTS
	Repurposing of Bond Proceeds: School Security
	Request for Approval of Agreement between Portsmouth Teachers
	Request for Approval of Agreement between Portsmouth Library Employees

	CONSENT AGENDA
	Annual Go Skate Day Jam Request

	PRESENTATIONS & WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS
	Letter from Robin Rousseau - Zoning Regulations 5G Cellular Towers
	Letter from Craig Welch - PHA - Request to Waive Permit Fees - 1035 Lafayette Road
	Email Correspondence

	MAYOR McEACHERN
	Appointments to be Considered - Celeste Brooks

	CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS
	COUNCILOR BAGLEY
	Parking & Traffic Safety Action Sheet & Minutes - May 1, 2025

	APPROVAL OF GRANTS & DONATIONS
	Acceptance of Donations - Police Explorers




